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Revenue (RMB million)

Adjusted gross profit margin (Note)

Consolidated net profit (RMB million)

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

(RMB million)

Net cash generated from operating

activities (RMB million)

Basic and diluted earnings

per share (RMB cents)
Proposed final dividend
per share (HKD cents)

WANEEFET)
IRFBEMNE (f152)
BHENBAREHET)
ARABEREETE
(AR®EZET)

RETHELTZFRE
(AR¥BET)

BREANEFRF
(AE#®S)

BESRRERE
(B

Note: Adjusted gross profit margin represents gross profit after
impairment losses for trade and bills receivables and contract

assets.

Financial Highlights

2023

2023
(Approximately)
(B4)

2,569.5

15.4%

25.3

25.3

349.3

0.41

NIL £

MBRE

2022

2022 4F
(Approximately)
(#E49)

3,263.6

11.1%

721

72.1

76.8

1.16

NIL 4
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OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services create value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

To lead an honest and clean life

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement

Statistics Analysis

Continuous Improvement

PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers

Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Corporate Culture & Mission

Annual Report 2023
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby
present to you the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

Looking back at 2023, the global economic growth slowed
down modestly, and the global economic recovery faced a lot of
pressures and challenges under the environment of long-term
impact of the pandemic, geopolitical tensions, high inflation and
high interest rates. China’s economy has steadily rebounded.
According to the data released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) in
2023 was approximately RMB126,058.2 billion, representing
an increase of 5.2% over the previous year. The intensity and
effectiveness of the central government’s regulatory policies
have gradually become clear, and high-quality development has
been solidly promoted.

The real estate industry is still facing a relatively long adjustment
period, with fierce competition of real estate enterprises. In
the face of the challenging market environment, the Group
adheres to the development direction of “healthy enterprise,
healthy employee, and healthy service”, strengthens the control
of operational risks, strictly controls the quality of contracts,
strengthens cash flow management, and seeks the long-term
development path of the enterprise.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB25.3 million (2022: approximately RMB72.1 million). The
main reason was the decrease in foreign exchange gains as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2022.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In 2024, the international economic situation is expected to
remain complex and uncertain. Factors such as the restoration
and reconstruction of the global supply chain triggered by
geopolitical risks, the decline in international trade level, and
the high inflationary pressure will continue to constrain the
global economic growth. However, as the interest rate hike
cycle of major developed economies gradually ends, it will have
a positive impact on the global financial environment in the
future. At the same time, the basic trend of long-term positive
economic development in China will continue. In the face of
the complex and volatile economic environment, the Group
will firmly focus on its main business objectives, gain insight
into potential market opportunities, continuously increase
its efforts in open operation and international operation, and
strive to improve its global resource allocation capabilities and
comprehensive capabilities in R&D, manufacturing and services.
At the same time, the Group will place the construction of
safe operation at the core of corporate development, maintain
operational resilience and stabilise asset quality. The Group
also attaches great importance to sustainable development and
creates value for customers.

Kang Baohua
Chairman
28 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall performance

Looking back at 2023, the global economic growth slowed
down modestly, and the global economic recovery faced a lot
of pressures and challenges under the environment of long-term
impact of the pandemic, geopolitical tensions, high inflation and
high interest rates. China’s economy has steadily rebounded.
According to the data released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) in
2023 was approximately RMB126,058.2 billion, representing
an increase of 5.2% over the previous year. The intensity and
effectiveness of the central government’s regulatory policies
have gradually become clear, and high-quality development has
been solidly promoted.

The real estate industry is still facing a relatively long adjustment
period, with fierce competition of real estate enterprises. In
the face of the challenging market environment, the Group
adheres to the development direction of “healthy enterprise,
healthy employee, and healthy service”, strengthens the control
of operational risks, strictly controls the quality of contracts,
strengthens cash flow management, and seeks the long-term
development path of the enterprise.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was about RMB25.3
million (2022: about RMB72.1 million). The main reason was the
decrease in foreign exchange gains as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT)

During the year 2023, the aggregate amount of newly-awarded

projects of the Group increased by about RMB2,712.2 million
or 126.9% as compared with last year to about RMB4,849.6
million (2022: about RMB2,137.4 million). The main reason
for the increase was the Group’s deep cultivation of customer

KO (&)

AR TR (SI8ER)

20235 AEEMFAEIERBENA
R#4,84968 8B L(2022F : Y5 AR ¥
21374BBL) WEAFEMOARK
2,7122BEL126.9% c T EH N AL
ERMEFAR B TISIEEEE

resources and significant growth in overseas markets. Ko
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Number of Number of

projects RMB million projects RMB million

HEHE ARBEE BEHE AREES
Domestic A 100 2,220.6 79 1,494.2
Overseas =T\ 34 2,629.0 37 643.2
Total &5t 134 4,849.6 116 2,137.4
Backlog KETAR

As at 31 December 2023, the remaining contract value of
backlog of the Group decreased by about RMB1,262.9 million
or 11.4% as compared with last year to about RMB9,857.6
million (31 December 2022: about RMB11,120.5 million), which
could support a sustainable development of the Group for the

next 2-3 years.

Domestic
Overseas

Total

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

R2023F 12 A31H ' AEEBNRELAS
B4 %84 ARE857.68 & Jt(20224F
128318 : HAREI11,1205FET) -
REAFRBOHARE 126298 B THK
11.4% » RIABEEEBERR2-3FHEER
H"ENZE -

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Remaining value of contracts Remaining value of contracts
RSB TEE SR TEE
Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
HEHE ARMESR BEEHE ARBES
Al 222 5,759.4 208 4,799.4
)N 79 4,098.2 80 6,321.1
&5t 301 9,857.6 288 11,120.5

Annual Report 2023



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Major technology achievements and awards

In 2023, the Group obtained 14 patents for utility model.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In 2024, the international economic situation is expected to
remain complex and uncertain. Factors such as the restoration
and reconstruction of the global supply chain triggered by
geopolitical risks, the decline in international trade level, and
the high inflationary pressure will continue to constrain the
global economic growth. However, as the interest rate hike
cycle of major developed economies gradually ends, it will have
a positive impact on the global financial environment in the
future. At the same time, the basic trend of long-term positive
economic development in China will continue. In the face of
the complex and volatile economic environment, the Group
will firmly focus on its main business objectives, gain insight
into potential market opportunities, continuously increase
its efforts in open operation and international operation, and
strive to improve its global resource allocation capabilities and
comprehensive capabilities in R&D, manufacturing and services.
At the same time, the Group will place the construction of
safe operation at the core of corporate development, maintain
operational resilience and stabilise asset quality. The Group
also attaches great importance to sustainable development and
creates value for customers.

EEENWEDN

KO (E)

E BRI 2R

2023 FAGKEMEERNLER 1478
RXBRE

20244 - BIRE B Z MK ABEM T
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EEESE BREZKFEER - 20N
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BEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue
was about RMB2,569.5 million (2022: about RMB3,263.6
million), representing a decrease of about RMB694.1 million
or 21.3% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. This was mainly due to the delay in the progress of certain
projects caused by the unfavourable macroeconomic situation,
of which:

1. the revenue from domestic market of the Group
decreased by about RMB440.8 million or 29.9% as
compared with last year to about RMB1,031.1 million
(2022: about RMB1,471.9 million), contributing about
40.1% of the total revenue of the Group; and

2. the revenue from overseas market of the Group
amounted to about RMB1,538.4 million (2022: about
RMB1,791.7 million), representing a decrease of about
RMB2583.3 million or 14.1% as compared with last year,
contributing about 59.9% of the total revenue of the
Group.

Cost of sales

In 2023, the cost of sales of the Group decreased by about
RMB822.1 million or 28.6% as compared with last year to
about RMB2,054.2 million (2022: about RMB2,876.3 million).

Adjusted gross profit margin

In 2023, the Group’s adjusted gross profit margin was about
15.4% (2022: about 11.1%), representing an increase of about
4.3 percentage points over the same period last year. The
increase was mainly due to the cost saving and strict budgetary
control policies, of which:

1. the domestic adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
decreased by about 0.8 percentage points as compared
with last year to about 16.9% (2022: about 16.1%); and

2. the overseas adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
was about 14.4% (2022: about 6.9%), representing an
increase of about 7.5 percentage points as compared
with last year.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, rental income and net loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment.

In 20283, the other income of the Group decreased by about
RMB25.2 million or 98.8% as compared with last year to about
RMBO0.3 million (2022: about RMB25.5 million), mainly due
to the increase in net loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.

Selling expenses

In 2023, the Group’s selling expenses amounted to
approximately RMB59.3 million (2022: about RMB56.5 million),
representing an increase of approximately RMB2.8 million or 5%
as compared with last year, accounting for about 2.3% (2022:
1.7%) of the Group’s operating income. The increase was due
to the increase in marketing and promotion activities in 2023.

Administrative expenses

In 20283, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted to
about RMB356.4 million (2022: about RMB371.1 million),
representing a decrease of about RMB14.7 million or 4% as
compared with last year, and accounted for about 13.9% (2022:
11.4%) of the Group’s revenue. Such increase was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue in 2023.

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets

In 20283, the expected credit losses of financial and contract
assets of the Group increased by about RMB99.6 million as
compared with last year to about RMB123.6 million (2022:
about RMB24.0 million), accounting for 4.8% of the revenue of
the Group (2022: 0.7%).

EEEN WD
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20234 + AEEMEMMALARKC3IE
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BEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets
(continued)

The calculation of loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets arising from construction projects as at 31
December 2023 was carried out by an independent specialist,
namely Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (the “Valuer”),
with experience in expected credit loss calculation.

Since 2021, certain customers of the Group, in particular, some
property developer customers (the “Defaulted Customers”),
have encountered liquidity issues due to the adverse impact of
the macroeconomic environment and the COVID-19 pandemic,
and have defaulted on their debts. Accordingly, there was
a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets and
contract assets arising from contracts with these Defaulted
Customers.

The Valuer adopted expected credit loss model for calculation
of expected credit loss of trade receivables and contract
assets. The total trade receivables and contract assets as at
31 December 2023 are divided into two risk categories by the
customers as Defaulted Customers and other customers.

For the Defaulted Customers, the expected loss rates are
estimated based on the weighted-average recovery rate of
troubled debts derived from historical market data and have
been adjusted for industry specific information and forward-
looking information. The Group has identified the enterprise
prosperity index and real estate industry enterprise prosperity
index to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the weighted-average recovery rate of troubled debts derived
from historical market data based on expected changes in
these factors.

For other customers, the expected loss rates are estimated
based on the provision matrix, which derives expected credit
loss rates of trade receivables, commercial bills receivables
and contract assets based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experiences adjusted for factors that specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Expected credit losses of financial and contract assets
(continued)

As of 31 December 2023, the outstanding balances of trade
receivables and contract assets (after the amounts written-
off) is RMB5,123.7 million (31 December 2022: RMB5,880.8
million). The expected credit loss recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the loss allowance as at 31
December 2023 are RMB117.4 million and RMB2,491.3 million,
respectively (the expected credit loss recognised for the year
and the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 are RMB43.8
million and RMB2,706.4 million, respectively).

For expected credit loss of the commercial bills receivable from
property developer customers, the Group adopted the same
model as that of Defaulted Customers as these customers
of bills receivables had similar risk profile with Defaulted
Customers. As of 31 December 2023, the outstanding balances
of bills receivable is RMB126.0 million (31 December 2022:
RMB115.7 million). The loss allowance for the commercial bills
receivable as at 31 December 2023 is RMB40.7 million (31
December 2022: RMB38.8 million).

For expected credit loss of other receivables, the expected
credit loss recognised for the year ended and the loss
allowance as of 31 December 2023 are RMB4.2 million
and RMB11.6 million, respectively (the expected credit loss
recognised for the year ended and the loss allowance as of
31 December 2022 are RMB1.8 million and RMB65.3 million,
respectively).

Net finance income

In 20283, the Group’s net finance income amounted to about
RMB43.5 million (2022: about RMB147.4million), representing
a decrease of about RMB103.9 million or 70.5% as compared
with last year, and accounting for 1.7% (2022: 4.5%) of the
Group’s operating income. This was mainly due to the decrease
in exchange gains during the Reporting Period.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Income tax

In 2023, the income tax benefit of the Group was about
RMB5.5 million (2022: an income tax expense of about
RMB36.5 million), which was mainly due to the Group turning
from taxable profit last year to taxable loss this year.

Consolidated net profit

As a result of the foregoing, in 2023, the consolidated net profit
of the Group was about RMB25.3 million (2022: RMB72.1
million).

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

In 2023, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was about RMB25.3 million (2022: RMB72.1 million).
The main reason was the decrease in foreign exchange gains
as compared with the year ended 31 December 2022.

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2023, the net current assets of the Group
decreased by about RMB138.4 million or 45.0% as compared
with last year to about RMB169.4 million (31 December 2022:
about RMB307.8 million). This was mainly due to the decrease
of the net current assets of the overseas operation resulting
from the exchange difference on translation.

As at 31 December 2023, the restricted deposits of the Group
decreased by about RMB380.1 million or 54.2% as compared
with last year to about RMB321.0 million (31 December 2022:
about RMB701.1 million), which were mainly denominated in
RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group increased by about RMB55.0 million or 25.1%
as compared with last year to about RMB274.5 million (31
December 2022: about RMB219.5 million), which were mainly
denominated in RMB, USD, Qatar Riyal, Euro, GBP and AUD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Bank loans, other borrowings and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total bank loans
amounted to approximately RMB714.0 million (31 December
2022: approximately RMB855.0 million), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB141.0 million or 16.5% as
compared with last year. As at 31 December 2023, the bank
loans which should be repaid within one year were denominated
in RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total other borrowings
amounted to about RMB424.4 million (31 December 2022:
about RMB820.8 million), representing a decrease of about
RMB396.4 million or 48.3% as compared with last year. The
Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided by
total assets) was 82.2% (31 December 2022: 82.9%).
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Turnover days AR

2023 2022
Turnover days (day) BFAEXE(X) 2023 & 2022 4
Receivables (note 1) FEUCRRFR (BtaE 1) 353 302
Trade and bills payables (note 2) B RN RN EE (H7F2) 429 315
Inventory (note 3) GE(ME3) 124 75
Notes: Biat -
1. The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on 1. FEWBR KA R E T RmIB KA EAEN

the average amount of trade and bills receivables and contract
assets due from customer (contract assets less contract
liabilities) net of provision as at the beginning and ending of the
relevant period divided by total revenue of the relevant period
and multiplied by 365 days.

2. The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables
is based on the average amount of trade and bills payables
balances as at the beginning and ending of the relevant period
divided by cost of raw materials and installation cost of the
relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

3! The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the
average amount of inventory balances as at the beginning and
ending of the relevant period (net of provision) divided by cost
of raw materials of the relevant period and multiplied by 365
days.
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BEE WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Turnover days (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables
increased by about 51 days or 16.9% as compared with last
year to about 353 days (2022: about 302 days).

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade and bill
payables increased by about 114 days or 36.2% as compared
with last year to about 429 days (2022: about 315 days).

Inventories and contract costs

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used
in fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusions
aluminum, glass, steel and sealant. Contract costs are either
the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfill a contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory.

As at 31 December 2023, the inventory and contract costs
of the Group decreased by about RMB51.7 million or 16.6%
as compared with last year to about RMB259.2 million (31
December 2022: about RMB310.9 million).

Capital expenditure

In 2023, the payment for capital expenditure of the Group
increased by about RMB1.2 million or 200% as compared with
last year to about RMB1.8 million (2022: about RMBO0.6 million),
which was mainly the expenditure on the purchase of piecemeal
machinery and equipment in 2023.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in
USD, GBP and AUD. To hedge any foreign exchange risks, the
Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets
denominated in foreign currencies of the Group. The Group
ensures that net exposure to currency risk arising from assets
and liabilities will be maintained at an acceptable level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying value of the
property, plant and equipment, land use rights pledged for the
Group’s bank loans is RMB350.4 million (31 December 2022:
RMB358.0 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of the time and
other deposits pledged for bank bills and letter of credit
issued by the Group is RMB155.7 million (31 December 2022:
RMB479.4 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of RMB45.4
million bank deposits was frozen. The carrying value of the
deposits pledged to secure the performance and retentions of
construction contracts of the Group is RMB116.9 million (31
December 2022: RMB162.3 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying value of the
trade receivables and contract assets pledged for the Group’s

bank loan is RMB10.7 million (2022: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2023.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period and as at 31 December 2023.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Important events after the end of the Reporting Period

No important events have occurred to the Group after the end
of the Reporting Period.

Future plans for significant investments or capital assets

The Group does not have any future plans for significant
investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the
“Global Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary
shares were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net
proceeds raised were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The
ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011
and the supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (the
“Prospectus”), the Group intended to use the proceeds from
the Global Offering for expansion of its production capacity,
repayment of its existing debts, investment in research and
development, expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2023, an accumulated amount of
approximately HK$2,064 million of proceeds from the Global
Offering (of which expansion of production capacity: HK$621
million; repayment of bank loans (mainly comprised the loan
of Standard Chartered Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in
research and development: HK$261 million; and expansion of
its sales and marketing network: HK$220 million) was utilized in
accordance with the intended use as stated in the Prospectus.
It is intended that the remaining proceeds of approximately
HK$339 million will be used in accordance to the proposed
allocation as stated in the Prospectus in 1 to 5 years.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

Management Discussion and Analysis

B EIRE (&)

BEHRRNEREMF

RIBEMRE - AEEWBELEERNEIR

BEAREHERBENRKAE

RARSEH  AEELBREMNEARE
HERBENRRKAE ©

ERBENFAEHERE

MR2011F58 » RRF#TEREE([2
RBE |) - BE£1,708,734,000 (%L 8
B BEEAEBTIR1508TL EENAE
I FEEL) 5 2,402,947,0008 7T © KA A
TRARH 2011 F5 A 17 BEB QTR £

-

m o

BN N BE BB A2011 64 A20 BRA
BERR2011F5 AN RRER
(TBRER]) ATl - AEEES S KRIE
BEERER - BEBEEER  RERH
T - RIEFTHEME HER -

HE2023F12A31H  AEBEBE KRR
RERFTAMWTBEAAR R R ERAOEIRE
EMEH2064B 8B (EPERER
621 BEEBIT  BERTER(EERE]
RITER) - 962 B BB T ML : 261
BEBT: REZZHAERK 220888
J0) ° BTN ATSFRIEA 339 A BB LSRR
REEBBRERFENARKIBISFEAFERA o



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Global offering and use of proceeds (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the detail of the net proceeds stated
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HZE2023F 12 A31 B 1k P88 %58

as follows: SR
Accumulated
Utilized amount utilized
Unutilized for the year amount Unutilized  Future plans
amount as at ended asat amountasat  for remaining
Amount of net 1January ~ 31December 31 December 31 December  proceeds in
Use of Proceeds proceeds 2023 2023 2023 2023 1t0 5 years
HZ202%
BZ20235 128318  EZANE  HEANE HBHEN
1818 234 12A318 12318 RR1ESEH
fERERE e RS ABALH BRSE  ZitfAeE ABALE Rigita
HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (million) HKD (milion)
AEEET BERET BERET BERET BBEET AERET
Expansion of production capacity ERBR 960 341 11 621 339 339
Repayment of bank loans BRRTER 962 - - 962 = =
Expenses in research and ESn
development 261 - - 261 - -
Expansion of its sales and Brenms
marketing network 220 - - 220 - -
TOTAL &t 2,403 341 il 2,064 389 339
Employees and remuneration policies BB REFMIECR

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 2,376 full-time
employees in total (31 December 2022: 2,511). The decrease
in number of full-time employees was a result of the Group’s
headcount optimization. The Group has sound policies of
management incentives and competitive remuneration,
which align with the interests of management, employees
and shareholders. The Group sets its remuneration policy
with reference to the prevailing market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, subject to review
from time to time. The components of the remuneration
package consist of basic salary, allowances, fringe benefits
including medical insurance and contributions to pension funds,
as well as incentives like discretionary bonus.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAER

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (EEE %), aged 70, is the founder and
Chairman of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive
Director on 26 February 2010. Mr. Kang is the vice president of
the Liaoning Chamber of Commerce (EZE% EE). Graduated
from Liaoning University (% X2) with a diploma in politics
in 1984, Mr. Kang has over 30 years of experience in the
curtain wall industry and has been responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group since
1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was an executive
director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company (&%
R EE 7). Since the establishment of the Company, Mr.
Kang has been involved in the management of the Company,
including business development, finance and corporate
strategy formulation. Mr. Kang is also a director of various other
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhao Zhongqiu (#E%K), aged 58, chief executive officer
of the Group and an Executive Director of the Company,
obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Engineering from Hunan
University (415 A£2) in 1987 with a major in internal combustion
engineering. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1996 and has more
than 28 years in manufacturing and project management. From
1996 to 1998, Mr. Zhao managed production and technology
works in Shenyang subsidiary of the Group. From 1999 to
2004, Mr. Zhao served as the deputy general manager and
general manager, responsible for the production and project
management work in China. In 2005, Mr. Zhao was assigned
new duty to conduct the projects operations in America and
Africa as a general manager. In 2017, Mr. Zhao was promoted
to the president of global operations of the Group, responsible
for onshore and offshore businesses. On 4 July 2022 Mr. Zhao
was appointed as a member of the remuneration committee,
the CEO and one of the authorised representatives of the
Company. Since 2006 Mr. Zhao has managed more than 100
overseas landmark projects.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Hao (E££), aged 43, an Executive Director of the
Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management from
Jilin University (F#A22) in 2002 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Wang Hao joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated
more than 16 years of experience in financial management.

Mr. Zhang Lei (&%), aged 51, since February 2013, acted
as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., Ltd (BfFE Kia%E TIEER A 7)) (“Shenyang
Yuanda”), one of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group in July 2002 and had over 21 years of
experience in curtain wall industry. Before joining the Group,
from 1994 to 2000, Mr. Zhang held various managerial positions
in Northeast Refractory Plant, including vice director in charge
of production and equipment and director of equipment
department in No.4 branch of Northeast Refractory Plant. From
2001 to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted as a management intern in
Japanese YKK company. From 2002 to 2005, Mr. Zhang held
various key positions including quality control and technology
minister in Northeast Branch of Shenyang Yuanda. He acted
as a designer in Middle East Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from
2005 to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, he acted as chief designer
in Dubai Branch of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for the
Group’s ACC44 residential buildings, imperial buildings and
commercial bay administration building and other projects. From
2008 to 2012, Mr. Zhang held various positions in Shenyang
Yuanda, including assistant to chief engineer in International
Operation of Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of International
Curtain Wall Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda, factory
controller and factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a
diploma in electrical and mechanical engineering in 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAER

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#%#), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 12
April 2011. Mr. Woo has over 29 years of experience in the
accounting and financial services industry. He began his career
as a certified accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co where he
qualified. Subsequently, he was employed in senior positions
as an investment banker at ING, CITIC Securities and Credit
Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree. He
is @ member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Woo is currently an independent non-
executive Director of Yankuang Energy Group Limited (Hong
Kong stock code :1171). Mr. Woo is also an independent non-
executive director of SMIT Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code:2239). Mr. Woo was an independent nonexecutive director
of Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 958, subsequently withdrawn listing voluntarily with effect
from 24 February 2020) from 28 June 2019 to 22 April 2020.

Mr. Woo resigned as an independent non-executive director of
IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1029) on 25 May 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Yuhang (E£F#i), aged 40, graduated from
Shenyang University of Technology with a master’s degree in
accounting. He possesses the professional qualifications of
national senior accountant and senior auditor. Mr. Wang was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company, a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company on 13 July 2023. Mr. Wang is the
national high-level accounting talent of the Ministry of Finance,
the leading talent for the fifth phase of economic management
in health industry of the National Health Commission of the
PRC, the top accounting talent of Liaoning Province, the
accounting consulting expert and the audit theory research
backbone talent of Liaoning Province. Mr. Wang is the director
of the financial professional committee of the Liaoning Health
Economics Association, the director of Liaoning Institution of
Internal Audit and a member of the Shenyang Youth Federation.
He worked in the Planning and Finance Department of the
Shenyang Radio and Television Station and Liaoning Provincial
Audit Department. He is currently working at the First Hospital
of China Medical University as Chief Accountant. Since
April 2022, he has been an independent director of Allwin
Telecommunication Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002231). He has rich experience
in financial management, taxation and auditing.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Yang Qianwen (B15%X), aged 31, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 April 2023. Ms.
Yang has over 9 years of experience in finance, audit and
accounting in the PRC. Ms. Yang graduated from the School
of Accounting, Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
and is a certified public accountant, a registered tax adviser
and a registered asset valuer in the PRC. Ms. Yang worked
previously as a senior audit manager at Zhongzhun Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), as a senior
investment manager at the Liaoning branch of Huatai Securities
Co., Ltd., and as the assistant to chairman of EZ[a] H 2%
ERFABRAT (Liaoning Sunflower Education Technology
Co., Ltd.). She has rich experience in financial management,
taxation, capital operation and auditing.

Mr. Ha Gang, aged 58, graduated from Dalian University
of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in law in 1987 and
obtained a master’s degree in law from Tsinghua University in
January 2005. He has been a professor and a master tutor of
Liaoning University of Traditional Chinese Medicine since July
1987, and has been an independent director of Shenyang
Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000410) since November 2022.
Mr. Ha served as an independent director of Jinbei Automotive
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600609) from 6 August 2019 to 6 September 2022,
and an independent director of Shenyang Yuanda Intellectual
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002689) from 14 July 2017 to 30
July 2020.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended
31 December 2023. All Directors are not involved in any matters
concerning Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (R=&), aged 47, was appointed
as the company secretary and authorized representative of the
Company in June 2012 and has over 22 years of experience in
corporate services field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu joined Fung,
Yu & Co. CPA Limited and is currently the company’s managing
partner. Mr. Yu has also been the company secretary of Beijing
Media Corporation Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code:1000), and
Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631) and independent non-
executive director of Realord Group Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 1196), The Sincere Company, Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 244), CSMall Group Limited (Hong Kong
stock code:1815) and Timeless Software Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 8028), all of which are listed companies in Hong
Kong, since March 2010, February 2017, June 2014, June
2021, November 2021 and March 2023, respectively. Mr. Yu
graduated from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s
degree (Honour) in Commerce in 2000 and from the University
of London with a Bachelor’s degree in Law in 2005. He
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Certified Practicing Accountants of Australia,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Certified Trust Practitioner of the Hong Kong Trustee
Association.
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EEREREEAER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Zhonggqiu (&%), Chief Executive Officer of the
Company - see the paragraph under “Executive Directors”
above.

Mr. Tian Wei (H), the chief financial officer of the Company,
aged 49, obtained his bachelor’'s degree from Shenyang
University (% AE) in 1999 with a major in accounting.
Mr. Tian joined the Group in 2001 and has over 23 years
extensive experience in financial management and accounting
work. In 2005, Mr. Tian was promoted as the head of the
financial accounting department in Shanghai subsidiary of
the Group. In 2008, Mr. Tian was appointed as the financial
manager of international subsidiary of the Group. Since June
2020, Mr. Tian has worked for the financial department of the
Group as the general manager, responsible for planning and
management of financial accounting, taxation matters, costing
and corporate finance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

The Group adheres to the corporate core value of “customer-
oriented and striver-oriented” and practises the business
philosophy of “technology leads the market and service creates
value”. The Board of the Company plays a leading role in
formulating the corporate culture of the Company, regularly
monitors and evaluates the corporate culture, collects and
listens to the opinions of employees and stakeholders, so as
to ensure that the corporate culture of the Company is highly
consistent with the Company’s business objectives, legal and
compliance supervision, and employee interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance
principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code
to govern its corporate governance practices.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value including setting and approving the
Company’s strategic implementation, considering substantial
investments, reviewing the Group’s financial performance
and developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and over all performance
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”). The
Board has delegated to the chief executive officer, of whom
the directors also undertake, and through him, to the senior
management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, membership of the Board is made
up of eight members in total, with four executive Directors and
four independent non-executive Directors. During the year
ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman

Mr. Zhao Zhonggqiu Chief executive officer
Mr. Ma Minghui (resigned on 6 March 2024)

Mr. Wang Hao

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (resigned on 9 September 2023)
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (retired on 6 June 2023)
Ms. Yang Qianwen (appointed on 18 April 2023)

Mr. Wang Yuhang (appointed on 13 July 2023)

Mr. Ha Gang (appointed on 17 January 2024)
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued) EEGAMK(E)
BYBPITES BMITESR
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are
disclosed under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report. None of the members of the Board
is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his/her
independence pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of
the Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship)
between members of the Board.

In respect of the appointment of Mr. Ha Gang as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 January 2024, Mr.
Ha Gang confirmed that he obtained the legal advice referred to
in Rule 3.09D on 11 January 2024 and that he understood his
obligations as a Director of the Company.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and procedures to nominate candidate as a Director. Pursuant
to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee shall
identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, after assessing a number of factors of a
candidate, including, but not limited to, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience, commitment in respect of
available time and attention on relevant matters, independence
of proposed independent non-executive Directors and
diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the final decision
in relation to the nomination of any candidates to stand for
election at general meetings of the Company. The Nomination
Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend revision to the Board for consideration and
approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has considered a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of Board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy by conducting review of the Board’s
composition at least once annually, and adhering to the Board
Diversity Policy when making recommendation on any Board
appointments.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

Ms. Yang Qianwen was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 18 April 2023. Following
the appointment of Ms. Yang, the Board has achieved gender
diversity and thus fulfilled the requirement under Rule 13.92 of
the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2023, there were 2,006 male employees
and 370 female employees, representing approximately 84.4%
and 15.6% of the workforce (including senior management)
respectively. The Group targets to achieve at least 18.0% of
female employees by 2030 and expects a gradual reduction in
the number of the dismission of female employees.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such
mechanisms will be reviewed annually by the Board:

° At least one-third of the Board are independent non-
executive Directors in compliance with the Listing
Rules requirements, and the Company will assess
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors on at least an annual basis.

° The Nomination Committee will assess the independence
of a candidate who is nominated to be a new
independent non-executive Director before appointment
and the continued independence of the current long-
serving independent non-executive Directors on an
annual basis. All independent non-executive Directors
are required to submit a written confirmation to the
Company annually to confirm their independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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° All Directors are entitled to retain independent
professional advisors as and when it is required.

° All Directors are encouraged to express their views in
an open and candid manner during the Board/Board
committee meetings.

° The chairman of the Board will meet with the
independent non-executive Directors at least annually
without the presence of the executive Directors.

° A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
who has material interest in any contract or arrangement
shall abstain from voting and not be counted in the
quorum on any Board resolution approving the same.

The Board would review the implementation and effectiveness
of the above mechanisms on an annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman (the “Chairman”) and the
chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the
Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the
chief executive officer is Mr. Zhao Zhonggiu. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by separate
persons in order to preserve independence and a balance
of views and judgments. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses on
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for developing
strategic plans and formulating the organizational structure,
control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service
contract for a term of three years, and the appointment may be
terminated by not less than three month’s written notice. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of 1-3 years and the appointment may be terminated
by not less than one months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and any new Director appointed by the Board
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for reelection by shareholders of the
Company at the first general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

In accordance with articles 83, 84 and 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Kang Baohua, Mr. Zhao Zhonggiu,
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond, Mr. Wang Yuhang and Mr.
Ha Gang shall retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election (except for Mr. Woo Kar Tung,
Raymond) at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on 4 June 2024 (the “2023 AGM”).

BOARD MEETINGS
Board practices and conduct of Board meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors
at least 14 days before the meeting. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Board practices and conduct of Board meetings (continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including the Chief
Executive Officer, chief financial officer and company secretary,
attend all regular Board meetings and where necessary,
other Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible
for taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to the Directors for comment with in a reasonable time after
each meeting and final versions are open for the Directors’
inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Directors’ attendance records

Corporate Governance Report

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings

and committee meetings being held during the year ended

31 December 2023 and the annual general meeting for the
financial year of 2022 held on 6 June 2023 (the “2022 AGM”)

are set out below:

Name of Director

ESfE

Kang Baohua
REE
Ma Minghui (resigned on
6 March 2024)
S9E
(R2024 %3 /76 A#HF)
Wang Hao
=
Zhang Lei
RE
Zhao Zhongqiu
kv
Poon Chiu Kwok (resigned on
9 September 2023)
&R
(K2023%9 5 9 AHF)
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
HARR
Pang Chung Fai, Benny
(retired on 6 June 2023)
THIE
(R2023%6 16 ARfF)
Yang Qianwen (appointed on
18 April 2023)
BiER
(R20253%F4 7 18HEZF)
Wang Yuhang (appointed on
13 July 2023)
IFM
(R2023F7 F 13HEZF)

Board

Exg

5/5

5/5

5/5
5/5

5/5

5/5

5/5

2/2

3/3

2/2

Nomination
Committee

REZEE

3/3

3/3

EzgelR (@)

EE LR RS

HE2023F12A31BILGFE 8=
HFEEEERRZEGERUREER
20234 6 A 6 H AR/ 2022 F B B F E IR
RAFTAG ([2022FERRBEKRE]) K0
HEFIMT -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY,/ &EHA

Annual Chairman’s
Remuneration Audit General  Annual meetings
Committee Committee Meeting with INEDs
THE
BUkHTES
HHzEe ENERE RRBFEAE WEESE
11 11

11

11

11

313 11
212 11 11
33 2/2 11 11
212 11 11 11

Note: The denominators in the above table are by reference to the
number of meetings held during the relevant director’s tenure in

2023.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company would provide to each newly appointed
Director or alternative Director an induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of
a Hong Kong listed company, the Group’s businesses and the
statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company
as well as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure
that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Group also provided briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
skills from time to time. Further, the Company continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follow:
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Directors = EIEE
Executive Directors HITES
Kang Baohua REZE AB,C,D,E
Wang Hao = B,C,D,E
Zhao Zhongqjiu AR B,C,D,E
Zhang Lei RE B,D,E
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAKEBITES
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond EER A,B,CE
Yang Qianwen HEE B,EF
Wang Yuhang EFin B,EF
TR EARER 2R B A B 2y )
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Note:

A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate
development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)

D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

E. Directors E-Trainings in HKEx

F. Induction Training

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules and devised
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in the
Company’s securities (the “Company Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Company Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in
major Company matters, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable laws and regulations are followed. Each Director
is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered in to by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has
the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management for the discharge of its responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
Such Director’s remuneration was determined with reference
to the experience and duties of the Directors as well as the
Company’s remuneration policy and will be subject to review by
the Remuneration Committee from time to time.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes
in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC. The employees of overseas subsidiaries of the Group
participate in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
managed by the respective local government authorities. In
addition, certain qualified employees of overseas subsidiaries
also participate in defined benefit retirement plan. Details of the
Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 6(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

According to the retirement benefit schemes of the Group,
there is no applicable circumstance of forfeited contributions

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Each of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Kang Baohua (Chairman),
Mr. Wang Yuhang and Ms. Yang Qianwen, the majority of which
are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
annually and made recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
° made recommendations to the Board on the

appointment and reappointment of Directors; and

° made recommendations to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
professional experience, knowledge and length of
service.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Three Nomination
Committee meetings were held during the year under review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises four members, namely Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
(Chairman), Mr. Zhao Zhonggiu, Ms. Yang Qianwen and
Mr. Ha Gang, the majority of which are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations on the Directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular
monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level
of their remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their
written terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions
of the CG Code. Pursuant to code provision E.1.3 of the CG
Code, the Remuneration Committee would make available
its terms of reference, explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

° conduct an annual review with reference to companies
with comparable business or scale and recommend
remuneration adjustments, if appropriate;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management
by band in the annual reports; and

° conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its
performance as it may consider appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) ESZER ()
Remuneration Committee (continued) FMEES (&)
Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG code, the RIBCEE AT ZTRNEXFEEASIK
remuneration of the members of the senior management by SREREEKEREZ2023412 A31H

band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below: IEFE FMEEET T -

Number of individuals

In the band of FrBEE A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000 T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 & T £ 2,000,000 7T 2

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the HMMEEeRNEE20283F 12831 HIEF

year ended 31 December 2023. EEITTIREH -
Audit Committee EVELEEY

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises Ekizliiﬁiﬁﬁﬂ EZZEgh4BKER
four members, namely Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (Chairman), o DRIARREEE(ERE)  TFME
Mr. Wang Yuhang, Ms. Yang Qianwen and Mr. Ha Gang, all of £ BEELRLTREBILE  2FH9EAEB
which are independent non-executive Directors. TIEHITES ©

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and ERZEEMTIEBRBF AR RERUBK
supervise the financial reporting process and risk management RWmEFEERTEAPEEHE - AR
MEFgRHEEELER -

> I
2R
ym}

and internal control system and to provide advice and
comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit HZE2023F12A31HILFE - #XEE

PZ .

Committee: =

. made recommendations to the Board on the J MIMNEZBENERE  EFEZAER
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external RERESSRMEES  HENE
auditor, and approved the remuneration and terms of V%IEWEI’J e B K2 B R 6K
engagement of the external auditor;

. reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s . i A IR R ST R B R INEAZ B
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness Eﬁ BEUEEBERZEREFES

>§}

of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2023 as well as significant
issues on financial control, internal control and risk
management systems;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for
2023, and received periodic updates on the status of
internal audit activities;

° reviewed connected transactions entered into by the
Group or subsisting during the year;

° discussed the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system. This discussion included the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions; and

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and made

recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2023.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditors of the
Company twice without the presence of the executive Directors.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has also adopted an information disclosure policy
which has set out guidelines in respect of handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board is entrusted
with the responsibility for monitoring and implementing the
procedural requirements in the information disclosure policy.
Release of inside information shall be approved by the Board.
Unless duly authorized, all staff members of the Company shall
not disseminate inside information relating to the Group to
any external parties and shall not respond to media report or
market speculation which may materially affect the trading price
or volume of the shares of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company performing the corporate governance duties as
below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices

on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the
Board such explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for
approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. An internal audit
department has been established to perform regular financial,
operational and compliance reviews and conduct audit of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The work carried out by the
internal audit department ensures the internal controls are in
place and functioning properly as intended.

Risk management framework

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and Company assets and with the
support of the Audit Committee, and reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Risk management framework (continued)

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets
of the Group. The internal auditor and senior management
review and evaluate the control process, monitors any risk
factors on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee
on any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Significant risks and control measures

Business risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers
or main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial
buildings, the business and prospects of the Group heavily
depend on the performance of the construction and real estate
industries, which are cyclical and could be significantly affected
by fluctuations in economic conditions.

The time and costs involved in completing construction can
be adversely affected by many factors, including shortage of
materials, equipment and labour, adverse weather conditions,
natural disasters, labour disputes with contractors and
subcontractors, accidents, changes in government priorities,
and other unforeseen problems or circumstances. The
occurrence of any of these factors could give rise to delays in
the completion of a project, which may result in cost overruns
and potential disputes and claims from service recipients.
This may also result in the profit derived from the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall system not being recognised in the year in which it was
originally anticipated to be recognised.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Business risk (continued)

In order to better respond to the opportunities and challenges
from the changes in economy environment and policies, the
Company carries out in-depth study on the macro-economy
and policies all over the world to implement its strategies
to develop and strengthen penetration of different regional
markets thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

Industrial risk

The industry will remain polarized and extremely competitive;
leading towards the Matthew Effect of “the strong becomes
stronger” as the sector centralises and segregates. As the
market becomes more concentrated, market share will quickly
gravitate towards leading companies.

The Company has effectively coped with the impact of the
industrial risk, reduced variable costs and integrated fixed
assets. Meanwhile, the Company adhered to technological
innovation and obtained 14 utility models in 2023 which
empowered high-quality development of the Group in the
future.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.
Delay in supply of construction materials, unskilled construction
workers, safety accidents, natural disasters, adverse weather
and other factors may bring risks such as construction
progress, project cost, construction quality and customers
satisfaction, and thus affecting the results of operation and
reputation of the Company.

The Company has established various systems for
management of quality, progress, safety, material and cost of
project development to strengthen the overall management of
construction schedule, quality and safety, reduced construction
risks and emphasize safe development.

Compliance risk

The Company’s operation is subject to a wide range of
policies and regulations, including the company ordinance of
the region where it locates, financial and taxation regulations
and regulations in relation to construction and listing rules of
Hong Kong and mainland China etc., and the requirements
and changes of laws, regulations and policies may also affect
the Company. Due to the complexity of the construction
projects, the capability for claiming indemnity may directly
affect the profitability of a project. If the project team’s
experience in claims and counter claims is inadequate to meet
the requirements of the undertaken project, especially for the
overseas projects, if the Company fails to properly deal with
claims and counter claims in some construction projects where
the conditions are complex and the demand is high, especially
for the overseas projects, these will cause a negative impact on
the effectiveness and profitability of such projects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Compliance risk (continued)

The Company has designated special personnel to study new
regulations and policies and make relevant arrangements, and
reflected the requirements of relevant laws and regulations in
its business activities and operation management in a timely
manner. The Company also consults external experts for
handling compliance matters in order to comply with various
relevant regulations, policies and guidelines.

Credit risk

The Group is serving a large customer base with different
credit status, and its business development will inevitably be
affected by the varied credit profiles of these customers. Due
to the impact of the macroeconomic policy environment and
the COVID-19 epidemic, certain customers may suffer tight
cash flow leading to delays in payment or the increase of the
expected credit loss allowances recognised for financial and
contract assets. The Group seeks to reduce the aforesaid
impact by identifying and managing credit risks through internal
credit management measures, such as credit search, credit
rating, credit limit management, overall credit risk assessment
and stringent credit control against customers with faulty
payment records, as well as by transferring credit risks through
the purchase of credit insurance. The credit risk management of
the Group are set out in note 29(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the findings of investigations
on material internal control and the management’s feedback
thereof.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Financial risk (continued)

Based on the assessments made by the management and
taking into account the audit works of the independent
auditor, the Board and the Audit Committee considered that
no significant areas of concern in respect of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were identified during
the year of 2023.

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems performed during the
year, the Board considers such systems effective and adequate.

Material risks relating to ESG

Please see the section headed “Impact of climate change” in
the ESG report dated 29 April 2024.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external
company secretary service provider of the Company, has
been engaged by the Company as its company secretary
since 30 June 2012. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Wang Xiao, the secretary of the Finance and
Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the company
secretary undertook 15 hours of professional training to update
his skills and knowledge.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 74 to 84.

The audit fee incurred during the year ended 31 December
2023 was approximately RMB8.8 million. The fees paid
or payable to KPMG for the audit of the annual financial
statements of the Group were approximately RMB6.5 million
(excluding the expenses on the non-audit service provided).

The external auditors of the Company provided non-audit
services in relation to transfer pricing tax advisory services for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and the non-audit service
fees were approximately RMBO0.9 million. The Audit Committee
has undertaken a review of all non-auditing services provided
by the auditors and confirms that they would not, in the Audit
Committee’s opinion, affect the independence of the auditors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (including making proposals/
moving a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting):

° Any one or more shareholders of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, on a one vote per share basis, (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business or resolution
specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or moving a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting must deposit a written requisition (the
“Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Office 11, 9/F, Fortune
Commercial Building, 362 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

° The Requisition must state clearly the name of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed
to be included the details of the business(es) proposed
to be transacted in the extraordinary general meeting,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition,
the Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders
of any outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed
to convene an extraordinary general meeting, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may
convene a physical meeting at only one location which
will be the principal meeting place in accordance with
the memorandum and articles of associations of the
Company, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’
Rights” are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes
only. The information does not represent and should not
be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the
Company to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their
own independent legal or other professional advice as to their
rights as shareholders of the Company. The Company disclaims
all liabilities for losses incurred by its shareholders in reliance
on any contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’
Rights”.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong by post through the following
means:

Telephone number: (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders and
potential investors are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate
with the shareholders as follows:

(i). Corporate communications such as annual reports,
interim reports and circulars are all sent by email
and are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.yuandacn.com;

(if). Periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i),  Corporate information is made available on the
Company’s website;
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

(iv).  Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide
a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management; and

(V). The Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company
serves the shareholders in respect of share registration,
dividend payment and related matters.

The Board considers that its existing communication channels
with its shareholders and investors are effective in facilitating
ongoing communication and dialogue between shareholders
and the Company.

The Company continues to promote investor relations and
enhance communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company may be sent by post to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2023 will be held on 4 June
2024. The notice of 2023 AGM will be sent to shareholders of
the Company at least 21 clear days before the 2023 AGM.

The amended and restated articles of association of the
Company was approved and adopted on 6 June 2023, the
details of which are set out in the circular of the Company dated
28 April 2023. Save as disclosed above, there were no changes
in the constitutional documents of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors including earnings and financial conditions, operation
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions
that any other Directors may deem or are relevant and will be
subject to the approval of our shareholders of the Company.
There can be no assurance that dividends of any amount will
be declared or distributed in any given year.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and outlook of the Company’s business, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and
important events affecting the Company occurred during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are provided in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
9 to 21 of this annual report. An account of the Company’s
relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the
paragraph headed “Relationships with Employees, Suppliers
and Customers” of the Report of the Board of Directors on
page 62 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2023 using financial performance indicators
is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 9 to 21 of this annual report and the
Group’s “Five Year Financial Summary” on page 232 of this
annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Company are provided in the ESG report dated 29 April 2024.
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Report of the Board of Directors

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the
Group. The conscientious use of resources and adoption of
best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group
encourages environmental protection and complies with
environmental legislation and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees.

The PRC government has imposed strict requirements of the
laws of production safety and environmental protection for
enterprises. Since the PRC government is adopting laws on
strengthening environmental protection from time to time and
implementing stricter environmental protection standards,
it is expected that the Group will have to comply with more
regulations in the future. In addition, the Group predicts this
trend will continue and additional expenses may be incurred for
complying with new regulations, thus increasing the Group’s
operating costs.

To cope with the risk, not only are we certified with ISO
14001 Environmental Management System, but we have
also set up an Environmental Division to monitor and manage
the environmental performance of our plants and maintain
communication with the Ministry of Environmental Protection.
In addition, the Group has been optimising its management
system for safety and environmental protection, regularly
keeping abreast of the relevant laws and regulations of
environmental protection in order to ensure full compliance with
local laws of environmental protection. Further details are set
forth in the ESG report dated 29 April 2024.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one
stop integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet
the technical specifications and performance requirements
of their projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and financial condition of the Company and the Group as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 85 to 88.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose in determining who will be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2023 AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 30 May 2024 to Tuesday, 4 June
2024 (both days inclusive), during which time no transfer of
shares will be registered. To ensure that the shareholders of
the Company are entitled to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM,
the shareholders must deliver their duly stamped instruments
of transfer, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, to
the Group’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Link Market Services
(Hong Kong) Pty Limited, at Suite 1601,16/F., Central Tower 28
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 29 May 20283 for registration of the relevant
transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements.
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of
dividends to the shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Associations, and with the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividend may be declared and paid out
of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorized for this propose. As at 31 December 2023,
the distributable reserves from share premium of the Company
were RMB574.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB574.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate to
the Group’s total purchase and the percentage of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
to the Group’s total revenue are less than 30%, respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none
of the shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the
share capital of the Company possessed any interest in the
abovementioned suppliers and customers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes
necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its market
competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards and high quality products
to its customers. During the year under review, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
most suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Zhao Zhongqiu (Chief executive officer)
Ma Minghui (resigned on 6 March 2024)
Wang Hao

Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok (resigned on 9 September 2023)
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Pang Chung Fai, Benny (retired on 6 June 2023)
Yang Qianwen (appointed on 18 April 2023)
Wang Yuhang (appointed on 13 July 2023)

Ha Gang (appointed on 17 January 2024)

Biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for the executive Directors and
non-executive Directors are set out under the section headed
“Appointment and Re-election of Directors” of the Corporate
Governance Report. There was no service contract entered
by the Company and any of the Directors to be re-elected
in the coming annual general meeting stipulating that the
Company may not terminate the appointment within one
year without compensation payment (other than the statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements, there was no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance with any
member of the Group as the contracting party and in which the
Directors of the Company possessed direct or indirect material
interests, and which was still valid on the year end date or any
time during the year and related to the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no other contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party and in which a controlling
shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROVIDED BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the facility frame agreement on 2 January 2018
between the Company and the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company, Mr. Kang Baohua, Mr. Kang Baohua agreed
to provide financial assistance to the Company in a total
amount of not more than RMB700 million. Such advances had
no fixed term, unsecured, and bear interests at 4.28% for the
year ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the
total outstanding amount under such advances amounted to
approximately RMB126.2 million. As such financial assistance
were being carried out on normal commercial terms or better
and were not secured by the assets of the Group, such financial
assistances constitute exempt connected transactions under
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions entered into
by the Group during the year are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements; and none of these related
party transactions constituted a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

Our Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best
Outlook Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited
(“Neo Pioneer”) owns in aggregate approximately 61.25% of
the issued share capital in the Company as at 31 December
2023. Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also
owns 100% interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda
Group, which is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore
is primarily engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well
as investment holding. Although the Company has established
a wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain
wall contracting projects, the ability to contract for large scale
public curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on
local contracting experience. Given the lack of direct local
contracting experience, the Group has been cooperating with
Yuanda Singapore on the contracting of large scale public
curtain wall projects in Singapore during the last five years
and will continue to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda
Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary will
be able to undertake such projects in Singapore on its own.
Please see the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid purpose, Yuanda
Singapore has been excluded from the deed of non-competition
(“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the controlling
shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of
the compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of
Non-competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company have also confirmed that all of them have abided
by the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that they
had determined that the controlling shareholders have not
been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed
or might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which he or she may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his or
her office or otherwise in relation thereto in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company, its
holding company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting
parties of any arrangements from which the Directors could
make a profit by purchasing the shares or debentures of the
Company or any other companies.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreements during the year ended 31 December 2023.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futons Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which would be required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to Model Code, are as follows:
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EEERE

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

EERKRMD - HEROREFNERR
KR (E)

(). Interest in the Company (i) KRR
Approximate
Number Percentage
Name of Director Nature of Interest of Shares of Shareholding
EERE EENE IR 1 8B REMAOB DL
Kang Baohua Beneficial owner 228,636,000(L) 3.68%
REE EmEAA
Interest of controlled corporation 3,646,763,768(L) 58.74%
R EE R
Wang Hao Beneficial owner 150,000(L) 0.01%
T2 EmAA
Zhang Lei Beneficial owner 3,000,000(L) 0.05%
RE BEmEAA
Notes: Kt -
1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities. (1) FRLIRERZSEEFNTER -

(2) Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,597,531,923
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and
1,049,231,845 Shares were held by Neo Pioneer
Limited, both are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

@) REBEZELXEMBENRD
B EEARAAFESR
2,597,531,923 & f& 15 + 1M #7 &l
AR A\ A E 1,049,231,845
B G  MRARHAREESS
E2BHER -
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(if) Interest in associated corporations
Name of
Name of Director Associated Corporation
BEEHR HEEEER
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited
FEE ERBRAT
Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited
REZE MEIER A A
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2023, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had an
interest and/or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO:

Interest in the company

Name Capacity
= &4

Best Outlook Limited™ Beneficial owner

FIRARQTO EmlEEA

Neo Pioneer Limited® Beneficial owner

MEIERARA@ EmEEA

Notes:

(1) Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies
incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang
Baohua.

(2) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Directors are not aware of any persons, other than a Director
or chief executives of the Company, had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31

December 2023 are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year under
review.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of
independence issued by all the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board of Directors was satisfied with the independent
status of all the independent non-executive Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
The details are disclosed in the paragraph “Global offering and

use of proceeds” under the section “Management Discussion
and Analysis”.
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EEEWRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in
this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Reporting Period.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20, 13.21 AND 13.22
OF THE LISTING RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in
the responsibility of disclosure under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules regarding the provision of advances
by the Company to an entity.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
in the past five years is set out on page 232 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the
Articles of Association of the Company or the companies law
of Cayman lIslands, stipulating that any new shares shall be
offered according to the respective shareholding of the existing
shareholders of the Company when new shares are issued by
the Company.

TAX RELIEF
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief to which

shareholders of the Company are entitled by reason of their
holdings of the Company'’s securities.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Group
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Group maintained adequate public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

KPMG resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from
20 December 2021 as KPMG and the Company could not
reach a consensus on the audit service fee regarding the annual
audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board, with the recommendation from the Audit
Committee, appointed Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore
Hong Kong”) as the auditor of the Company with effect from
20 December 2021.

Moore Hong Kong has resigned with effect from 17 June 2022
for the impact of the prevention and control policies in response
to the recent resurgence of COVID-19 epidemic in both Hong
Kong and mainland China on the Company’s financial reporting
and auditing procedures. The Company then appointed KPMG
as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 30 June
2022.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change of the

Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

29 April 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 231, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BB E @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and

HMRETERE)

EEARBRARE
2R E OIS AW T4 R ZF200) 89 &

the accounting policies in Note 2(t)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group is primarily engaged
in the design, production and
installation of curtain wall systems
for commercial buildings and high-
end residential buildings. The Group
normally enters into construction
contracts with main contractors or
real estate developers.

The Group recognises construction
contract revenue progressively
overtime using input method
based on the proportion of total
contract costs incurred at the
end of reporting period compared
to the estimated total budgeted
contract costs to complete the
contract when control of the goods
or service is transferred to the
customer.

The measurement of the revenue
therefore relies on estimations of
total budgeted contract costs.
Changes to estimated total
budgeted contract costs could give
rise to material variances in the
amount of revenue recognised.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recognition of construction contract
revenue included the following:

* assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls over the budgeting
process for construction contracts;

e scrutinising the key clauses of
construction contracts on a sample
basis, and assessing whether these
key clauses had been appropriately
reflected in the estimation of total
budgeted contract costs applied in
revenue recognition;

o challenging the Group’s estimates
of total budgeted contract costs to
complete the contract on a sample
basis by considering the Group’s
historical records of gross profit
margins for similar contracts;

* assessing whether costs incurred
were accounted for in the
appropriate period and comparing
costs incurred during the current
period to purchase invoices
and other relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZBERE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue (continued)
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in Note 2(t)(i). (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the recognition of
construction contract revenue as a
key audit matter because there is a
high degree of risk and associated
management judgement in
estimating total budgeted contract
costs and the amount of revenue
to be recognised by the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

performing a re-calculation of
revenue recognised for individual
contracts on a sample basis, based
on the estimated total budgeted
contract costs, the costs incurred
to date and the agreed contract
price;

performing site visits to a sample
of contracts in progress, physically
observing the stage of completion
of the contract and discussing the
status of the contract with the site
managers; and

assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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B ZEEERE @

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowances for contract assets and

trade receivables

Refer to Notes 16(a), 17 and 29(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s contract assets and
trade receivables mainly arise from
the Group’s construction business.
As at 31 December 2023, the
aggregate amount of contract
assets and trade receivables
totalled RMB2.6 billion.

The Group measures loss
allowances on contract assets
and trade receivables, with
the assistance of an external
specialist, at amounts equal to
lifetime expected credit losses (the
“ECLs”) which involved significant
management judgement, including
the determination of the loss rates
and adjustments for forward-
looking information.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL
allowance for contract assets and trade
receivables included the following:

* assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
controls over the credit control and
estimation of the ECL allowances;

e evaluating the Group’s policy for
and the method of estimating the
ECL allowance with reference to
the requirements of the applicable
accounting standard;

* examining the information used
by management to derive the
loss rates, including testing
the accuracy of the historical
default data and evaluating
whether historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and
forward-looking information;

* assessing, on a sample basis,
whether items in the ageing
report of trade receivables
were categorised appropriately
by inspecting the underlying
documents;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZBERE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected credit loss allowances for contract assets and

trade receivables (continued)

Refer to Notes 16(a), 17 and 29(a) to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j)(i).

(continued)

The Key Audit Matter

We identified the ECL allowances
for contract assets and trade
receivables as a key audit matter
because of the significant balances
at the end of the reporting period
and that the measurement of ECL
allowances is inherently subjective
and requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our

audit

evaluating the independence,
competence and experience of
the external specialist engaged by
management;

involving our internal specialists
to evaluate the appropriateness
of the key assumptions adopted,
including the expected recovery
rates in relation to certain
customers who are property
developers; and

assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the applicable
accounting standards.
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B ZEEERE @

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BB E @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B 3 % BUEN 3R & ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BEETH TS I RRAENSE
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ()

(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HERBIZBARENETFEEERA
independent auditor’s report is Yeung Ka Chun. PR

KPMG ESRE BB
Certified Public Accountants ST AT

8th Floor, Prince’s Building AR

10 Chater Road BB TR

Central, Hong Kong RFRENE

28 March 2024 202443 A28 H
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Expected credit losses of financial
and contract assets

Loss from operations
Net finance income

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Earnings per share (RMB cents)
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 93 to 231 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year are set out in Note 27(b).

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”))

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(AARE (TARE ) BB #HZE2023F12 A31 BILFE
2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T ARKETIT
ON 4 2,569,509 3,263,601
SHE A (2,054,169) (2,876,265)
EAM 515,340 387,336
H A A 5 305 25,467
HEEM (59,315) (56,474)
TBRX (356,438) (371,116)
TRMEEREEZ
SEEEIENEE=PS (123,564) (23,962)
rEBR (23,672) (38,749)
B E W asF R 6(a) 43,537 147,354
B ATRIHE 6 19,865 108,605
FriS %t 7 5,459 (36,476)
FERABASEFAATRE
25,324 72,129
BREAN (ARED)
— BEARREE 10 0.41 1.16

FRER1HZWNEFALETBERERZ —
o o EAARQBRREANRESFBFEHN
Bif5E27(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
effERREMEEKEE

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2023
(AARBABA) BE2023F12A31BIEFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Profit for the year FRFE 25,324 72,129

Other comprehensive income for FRHE M2 (BRBE
the year (after tax and REHIERER) :

reclassification adjustments):

ltem that may be reclassified HEguEHoBEEiEnmIER
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on — IR RENIER Z5E
translation of financial
statements (152,087) (212,664)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year (152,087) (212,664)

Total comprehensive income for FRAZHENHBAETDE F
the year attributable to equity RAFRER
shareholders of the Company (126,763) (140,535)

The notes on pages 93 to 231 form part of these financial FIRE231 B ALEMERTZ —
statements. b
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
& OF B FE AR R 3R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2023
(AARBREBRA) H2023F12H31H

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

HiaiE AR®T T ARETT

Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 11 350,984 320,174
Right-of-use assets EREEE 12 215,441 212,914
Investment properties "EYE 13 30,706 31,906
Deferred tax assets BELETIREE 25(b) 332,794 327,192
929,925 892,186
Current assets REEE
Inventories and other contract FEMEMER KA
costs 15 259,193 310,865
Contract assets aREE 16(a) 1,188,488 1,616,958
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WK R BRI 17 1,529,231 1,634,433
Deposits, prepayments and Be - BENERE
other receivables ot fE YK 18 457,724 523,990
Restricted deposits PR 17 5K 19(a) 320,986 701,144
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 19(a) 274,515 219,455
4,030,137 5,006,845
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and bills payables B RNARRENERE 20 1,573,174 1,839,774
Contract liabilities aREE 16(b) 508,569 495,830
Accrued expenses and FERTF S R A M E S 3R
other payables 21 338,716 382,760
Bank loans RITER 22(a) 713,950 855,000
Other borrowings E gk 23 424,407 820,760
Income tax payable B TS HR 25(a) 239,607 254,427
Provision for warranties RMEEE 26 62,357 50,458
3,860,780 4,699,009
Net current assets REBEEFEE 169,357 307,836
Total assets less current liabilities 2EERAB A & 1,099,282 1,200,022

SERDCAREH ERPEERERA



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
B OB AR R R ()

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2023
(AARBREBRL) H2023F12H31H

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Hia AR®T T ARETTT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 24 9,094 1,932
Provision for warranties RIS A 26 205,488 186,627
214,582 188,559
NET ASSETS HEE 884,700 1,011,463
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXKHE 27
Share capital fi& s 519,723 519,723
Reserves it 364,977 491,740
TOTAL EQUITY mRER 884,700 1,011,463

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on BEEEH202453 A28 B b/ M IRRET -
28 March 2024.

Kang Baohua Wang Hao
REE R
Director (Chairman) Director
BEFE(ETE) 3

The notes on pages 93 to 231 form part of these financial Fo3E2 BZHFANENHHREZ —
statements. o o
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Balance at 1 January 2022

Changes in equity for 2022:

Profit for the year
Qther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

1202251 A1R
PE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOREEEER

N0 EERET .

ERHE
Ef2EkE

ENEER

(Expressed in RMB)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Balance at 31 December 2022 72022512318

L5k

(AARBRBEMN) #HE2023F12A31BILFE
PRC
Share Share QOther statutory Exchange  Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserves reserve losses Total
fhus Rine(E Al rEAERE ER &R ZitER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR AR®TT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

(Note 27(c))  (Note 27(a)(i)) ~ (Note 27(aiii) ~ (Note 27(d)(iv))  (Note 27(d)(v))

(Wtone) — (aonap)  (Watona)  (W2nah)  (WEare))
519,723 574,047 55,786 435,901 22,936 (456,395) 1,161,998
- - - - - 72,129 72,129
= = = = (212,664) = (212,664)
- - - - (212,664) 72,129 (140,535)
519,723 574,047 55,786 435,901 (189,728) (384,266) 1,011,463

SERDCAREH ERPEERERA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

S EZETHR @

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2023
(AARBABA) BE2023F12A31BIEFE

PRC
Share Share Other statutory Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserves reserve losses Total
oS Rt RfthiE  TEEERE B Zithi h

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTr  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARKTR
(Note 27(c))  (Note 27(c)(i) ~ (Note 27(a)iii) ~ (Note 27(a)(iv))  (Note 27(d)v))
(Hazone)  (aonap)  (Watona)  (Wonah)  (KEore))

Balance at 1 January 2023 72023%1A1H
&8 519,723 574,047 55,786 435,901 (189,728) (384,266) 1,011,463

Changes in equity for 2023: 20235 2 EHEE

Profit for the year ERAE - - = = = 25,324 25,324
Other comprehensive income ~ Ht 2 E M = = = = (152,087) (152,087)
Total comprehensive income 2 EMEHAR = = = = (152,087) 25,324 (126,763)

Balance at 31 December 2023 72023512318
iR 519,723 574,047 55,786 435,901 (341,815) (358,942) 884,700

The notes on pages 93 to 231 form part of these financial FOBEN BT AL ETBRE 2 —
statements. b
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEBEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2023
(AARBRERN) #HZE2023F12A31 BIEFE

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat ARBT ARETT

Operating activities RETE
Profit before taxation 75 B A1) 19,865 108,605
Adjustments for: FHEIEE
Depreciation and amortisation ree K i 6(c) 59,207 53,817
Interest income 2 WA 6(a) (38,571) (21,634)
Borrowing costs BEERA 6(a) 99,902 107,682
Net foreign exchange gain 4SNP UK 2 B (106,019) (187,074)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERLZE
plant and equipment o)==k 5 20,482 34
Changes in working capital: EEEeE
Decrease in inventories FERHME RS
and other contract costs 57,913 122,573
Decrease/(increase) in contract AREERL,(3EmM)
assets 449,565 (32,165)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B Z R R KRR
bills receivables A (1) 55,757 (41,656)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments &< ~ B REA
and other receivables JFE LSRR 128,548 31,164
Decrease in trade and bills payables & 5 &2k & - Z= 45 56 > (373,391) (74,222)
Increase/(decrease) in contract AERAEEEM, Crd)
liabilities 12,739 (19,069)
(Decrease)/increase in accrued JE & R S R EL Al FE S 3K
expenses and other payables G-V (38,032) 19,296
Increase in provision for warranties  RIEEHEEIE AN 19,996 13,173
Cash generated from operations KEFSHE 367,961 80,524
Income tax paid B PTSE 25(a) (20,050) (4,788)
Income tax refunded FriS iRk 25(a) 1,404 1,022
Net cash generated from RETHRABRELSFHE
operating activities 349,315 76,758
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

EHEESRER @

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2023

(AAREE RERL)

Investing activities

Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

HE20235 12 A31 BILEE

Net cash generated from investing REEB FIBH & FEE

activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans and
other borrowings
Repayment of bank loans and
other borrowings
Net proceeds for restricted deposits
to secure bank loans
and other borrowings
Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid
Borrowing costs paid

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T ARETIT
BRETH
BEYWE  BERREMK
(1,756) 617)
HEWZE  BERKREZ
FT1S 3% 18,423 19,658
B U F 8 32,743 33,961
49,410 53,002
BMETEE
FIGIRITE R E b5
FT{S 3% 19(b) 1,178,847 2,364,198
EBEFETERLEMMER
19(b) (1,717,918) (3,162,805)
BIRITE R R E A I
KPR Il 117 5OF AT 1S X
323,704 715,625
BENEERS 2 BRI D 19(b) (25,716) (21,570)
BEfNHERE 2 F B 2D 19(b) (740) (455)
BEAEERA 19(b) (106,754) (98,842)
RETEHFARSFE
(348,577) (203,849)
HERBELEEYEM OB
D) FEE 50,148 (74,089)
M1A1BEHNEREER
HEEEY 19(a) 219,455 284,219
INEETE R BB R R E
4,912 9,325
MR12A31ENERER
REEEY 19(a) 274,515 219,455

The notes on pages 93 to 231 form part of these financial FIRE231 B ALEMERTZ —
=i

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February
2010 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).
The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”). These financial statements
also comply with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Material
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new or amended
standards that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

1

BOFB B RRMEE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRHHEAIN - AR REN)
DREH

BRAFBREEZERAERAT(AQF])
R2010F2 A 26 BIRERSHE R
RIVA S 22F (1961 F E 35 A2 -
Kir e RER]) ER S B S MK
R—REBRERBRECELRR - AR
AR D K201 E5 A17H R & B
BERZABRAR ([BRA]) £
e ARAEHYBHREREBFEAR
AIREMBAR (F#E [REH )/
Bl AEBWEZ XL ARE

RS - AE - HERLREERBRLS -

EXREFHEE
(@ AREH

HERBERRDBEEES
ArEREEE ([ERERE
=g ) Rim IR
EERERDMRER © 1F
MBRERNNTE BB RAE
IR E MR AT F £
mARRI(T EWRA ) #9388
BEGEX - ARERAEKX
SRR - AT

B g EREETE B M
A TR SIS aT 2R - Ik
ZLEAFNAEEZEA SR
HA R B N A Rk A B B R
e BERERZERAER
B B B R B 7 e E B B
SIBERI g AR EAE
IR EEE R UL E B
Ik - AR E RS R
FF2(c) °
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S OF B 7 3R 3% I &F (a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAI -

2

IAARE R EAL)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for derivative financial instruments
and equity investment which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(e)).

The Company has its functional currency in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”). As majority of the Group’s
operation are conducted by the subsidiaries
of the Group in Chinese Mainland in Renminbi
(“RMB”), the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of RMB274,515,000,
while the Group had bank loans and other
borrowings within one year or on demand of
RMB1,138,357,000. The net current assets of
the Group decreased to RMB169,357,000 as
at 31 December 2023 compared with that of
RMB307,836,000 as at 31 December 2022, and
the net profit for the year ended 31 December
2023 decreased to RMB25,324,000 compared
with that of RMB72,129,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022.

In this regard, the directors of the Company have
identified various initiatives to address the Group’s
liquidity needs, which include the following:

o The Group continues to improve its
operating cash flows by accelerating
the progress billings and collection of
trade receivables, actively participating
in bidding, negotiating with suppliers on
payment terms, and reduction of operation
expenses;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

° The Group continues the negotiations with
various banks to:

(i) renew the short-term bank loans
upon maturity (see Note 22(a)); and/
or

(i) provide additional bank facilities to
the Group.

° Mr. Kang Baohua (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) and a company under his
control have committed to provide the
necessary financial support, including but
not limited to: renewal of the borrowings
from Controlling shareholder and a
company under his control upon maturity
(see Note 23).

Based on a cash flow forecast of the Group
prepared by the management, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group would
have adequate funds to meet its liabilities as and
when they fall due for at least twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company consider it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

S 0OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHER - AARS BEN)
2  BREHEREGE)

b  MBERERORBEE(E)

. ANEE B AR IR IRTT
TR

0) RHRITER
FERE M EE
(M 5£22(0)) :
&,/

(i) ) 7 55 (] 12 it
ZESNAY IR 1T R
>§ °

. FEELE ([ERER
R REZEH & —
KRR BEAERME NS
MBI BiE
BRRR : K2 ER
BB R R H %
H 8 —FE R BBV fE 3R
(RKizE23) °

RIBEEEEBRAENANEER
EREER  NAREER
R ARBEREERRES
RNHEIMARE ELAH
REBEPRES T =@
A-RHlt ARBEERR
BEEREEERES Y
BHRRIIBEE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAI -

IAARE R EAL)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRS Accounting Standards that
have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in Note 3.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following new and
amended IFRS Accounting Standards that are
first effective for the current accounting period of

the Group:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors: Definition of accounting
estimates

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality
judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two model
rules

None of these developments have had a material

effect on how the Group’s results and financial

position for the current accounting period have

been prepared or presented. The Group has not

applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S 0OF B 7 3R 3% MY 5 a0

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEHAI -

2

IAARE R EAL)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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